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EARLY HISTORY OF MILTON, WASHIKGTION -

COLLECTED JULY 1948 by VERA S. ADAMS

In 1885 or 1860 Fort Steilacoom was the largest settlement
or town in this area, There was a military road leading to
Seattle over which soldiers and supplies passed. This road
‘}ollowed an easterly direction; then turned sharply north,
passed through what is now Puyallup; the tdwn. and wenﬁ
directly north past Five Mile Lake to the poft of Seattle, a
telegraph line followed this road.

There was an Indian Commission set up neér what is now the

" Cushman HOSpitél. It was called Chushman then, also. The
Puyallup Indian tribe was inlthis area. At first the Indians
were allottéd land for a‘reservation out on the prairie south
and west of Tacoma about where Fort Lewis lies now. The
indians did not like the location. The land was poor for

their needs; so the Indian chief was allowed to travel through
the woods to choose the land he wanted. He did not follow

the lines heretofore ﬁafked off by the white man. The chief
chose creeks and rough land where his people could hunt and
fish; The Indian chief in company with the surveyors, travelled
through the wocds to point out the land of his choice for their
home. It was egual to a township in acres. He did not follow
“the valley 1land around Puyallup and that around Fife, through
the richest énd the best. The east border line ran:up on the
bluff or crest of the hill on Porter Avenue now in Milton, and

in a westerl& direction to the Bay even jncluding a part of

Vashon Island. This choice was made in one days ride.
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As a defense, a block-house was ecected on the bluffs, now
called Fife-Helghts. It stood there until 1920 when cwners
of the property demoiished it.
In 1876 Andrew J. Martin, with his family, was the first
~ yghite settler to live on the Puyallup Indian Reservation.
.He had permission to do so from Tndian agent at Cushman.
Jerry Meeker, a half-breed Indian who lives at Brown's
Point now, helped to care for a stallion on the farm which
was used for the propogation of belter horses in this section.
There seems to be some dispute concerning who was first in
this matter of white settlers, W.d. Meers, stepson of
Mr. Counter, a Civil War Veteran, claims that Counter, with
his family came into the same locality in 1882, having
. arrived at Orting in 1879 from California.
In 1883 Charles Blauvelt Sr. bought {wenty acres of land
from Martin and eight acres from Cash Xenney, whose Jtepoon
was John Chapman. They were among the earliest in the
section beyond the St. George Indian School.
The Tndians sold some of thelr land to the whites before

the provisinnal government of the state was set up: but

those sales were jlleral transactions and the sales were
not approved by court Jater. As a consequerce, the Tndian
heirs came back and claimed theiv land, forcinz the whites

to evacuate. One man is known to have lost as much as

$250.00 in this manner.
W. J. Meers claims the distinction of making the first

road in lhat section where they lived. He married Josephine




Martin, daughiter of A.d. Martin, Charles Blawvelt Sv.
married ancther Martin daughter, Marlha, Both famiiies
centinued to live there for nost of the remainder of their
1ives. Both reared fanilies of their own. Sarah Meers
became Sarah Roark. Chqr)cs:Blauvelt had four somns,
Charles Jr., Thomas, Walter, and William, all dliving in or
npear Milton, and two daughters. A ihird Martin dauchter
married a brother of W, J. Meers and returns to visit
occasibna].ly.
Libe and his son, Jchn Libo tock, homesteads. Johﬁ,J,‘Galg
“came in 1882.

Pat ¥elly, a Civil Warngteran, settled on Lhe sameysection
as Mr. Webb, Mr. Webb did not live there continuously,
however. He went to work for Jim Carsdn, who ouwncé and
operated a ferry on the Fuyallhp River very near the present
town., ‘That was before there were any bridges across tiyers.
There was another {erry up near the Cushman 5chool which

was operated by Indian Chief Sitwell. These so-calléd ferries
could transport only one team of borses at a time.

T 1889 Webh established nis settlement on the southeast
corner of a crossroads to be known later as Webb Cenber.

vy, Webb bousrht rirhts to Al J, Martins ‘school 1aﬁd. Mre.
Morrill, Cash Kenney,‘and his stepson, John Ghapman, were
among thls group alsc. Mr. Millgr. who was on a homestead,
sold his rirht to Timrow Conner, a negro whe uorked as a
janiter in Tacoma. MNre. pPorter had a homestead cn top of

the nill, There wias A t1ail from Forters houce aboutl, where



Ttherinston's house now slands, down the hill wnere Porter
v "\

Averue how i3, to the home of hig seonainelaw, Coh. Jermman,
Later, his horesbead was divided and sold as lots for other
homes. People walked because there were only trails. Xven

wagon trails were very difficult te Lravorse, because the

buffalo tracks caused them to be very rulty. The dense

growth of berry vines and underbrush, added to the thick

growth of Douglas Fir, made it next to impossible to go

anywhere except the paths made. Mild c1iméte éhdigfeatw

~ precipitation caused the veretation to remain the same. The

hillsides were so dense with Douglss Fir, that a wagon trail,

o

hewed out in 1901 or 1902, was dark and only Just wide

enouph for one-way traffic, with occasionally a "turn-out!

. alonz the way where wasens mirht mect. This was described

fby Fannic Vandershelton Fetterly, and bhe road was the one

¢

leadin~ te Des Moines from her home on Lhe present Roosevell

Avchue in Milton where she and her husband, Ffahk live,.

In 1889, Seattle burned. It consisted of wooden shacks built
ét about the present si{e af Yesler Vay. A fire engine was
sent from Tacora te Sealtls.  ‘The ensine that fiqufed in that
episbde, a traction stean medine which ran on the so.called
Yiphway, was sold Lo the Stepe-Webster Co, of Boston for use
in commtruction of the interurban throush this section.
Bosworth “ros. surveyed first. Trestles were built for the
envine ard flat cars were used te haul sravel ard dirt for the
train bed. 175 teams of miules and horses vere used with

serapers.  Leep ravines had Lo be filled in. They lived in



shacks around the mill. Frank Fetierly was cook at the

mili. besinning in March, 1901, Vrs. ¥vetterly helped him, of
course. Their son, Bert was born Nov. 2, 1901. ile was the
first new baby in this section. Mrs. Fetterly said that at
one time, the entire’camp;was,quarrantined’for two months.
\with smallpax. :Tbe,boy,who,wuiﬁed on tables, Harry H?zelton;
had it worst. She helped to care for the sick, GShe wasn't
alarmed aboul her baby getting it. None of the Fetterlys got it.
One evening at quitting time, a flat car wgs‘left 9”,th¢
trestle. The followine morning, when the‘cqvgtfuctiqn gang
cane tg gqu.,thuy looked in the dirv¢Lign‘whgrcﬁwmrg hadVSeen

%

suspended, and taey Just couldn't believe it. Trestle, flat

car, and load had disappeared. The borg had "swallowed" it alle.

In that section then, they had to drive pilings, one on top of

the other, 150 fect lony, belore thcy hiL bottng.{ That
happened ricnt down below the old city hall,wﬁerc there was

wild cranberry Eog. Joseph L; Martin, sonluf A. . Martin, was -
one-of the many who worked on that construction ganz. There
were workmen of every Wind; many Ttalians, a fow Hawaiians, men
from 2ll varts. They lived in shacks ard tents near the mill.
¥rs. Fetterly claims Lo be the first white woman to take a train
riée to Tacoma, That was its firsh trin, invthe sumﬁer of 1901,
The envine went that far. Tts fiest official run was in October
1902 and they went shopping in Auburn. The Puget Sound
Flectrical Zompany operated the Interurban line ard owned the
timber ard lumber mill.  The local men helped te cut the first

i

troes.  The rill employed 60 men. W. W, Meers, in 1892, was
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foreman Qf lorging on the western slope at the Ltop of the
hill and back toward the canyon of what is now doviLa,
He said he hewed squared iimbers 12 by 12 and 12 by 16 for
erecting the mill. Men cut 60,000 feet of t1mber per day,
one old-timer states. The mach1nery vas 1nstal]90 and th@
rest’of the mill completed after that VThe whole western slope
of the hill on which Milton is built, vou might éay, was in
the midst of these logging operatiané. Thé last skid road
was on Porter Avemme., A camp was built about where Cbarlgs
Blauvo]t s. house schbs now, Annturr was where the Milton
’Food Center is. The mill was down on the f]atC about the
center of the prasept Comnerc1a1 Avprua., Thé power house for
the 1ntprurban line was near, Sawdust from the mill £illed
in the draw where Britts now 11ve. chpples store stood just
south of the present site of Albert Simmons? store. It burned
later. Mr. Yerman operated a store rear it a’year or Kgﬁ
after that.
There were a number of other mills in this viecinity. A shingle
mill operated near where the lower pump station stands. Mr.
Hughes staried a mill in 1908 towards Firwood. Hostetter's
mill was a large one in the edee of Kirg County., The Hostetter
daughtcr married Mr. Mielke of Fife. Reynolds and Pcf“olds
owﬁed a mill thié side of Hostetter's, Hanﬁe Vista Lumber Co.
had one near those two.
The St. Georre Indian Catholic School was one of the first
schools established. Tt is thought that it possibly began in

1875 or 183C¢. Tt was a mrammar school, vrades one through eirht,
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Wnen the Indiané completed that, they could attend Cusgman.

Some white ehildren attended St. Georpe's also. Mrs, Fetterly
was one who did. When they finished the course there, they
could go to Tacoma to high school. Fr. iylabolis was one of

the first Catholic missionaries to come to the St. George Mission.
Hylbos Creek was named after him. A muber of the Indians and
half-breeds, especially, were well-educated, having attended

the Indian school of Chemowa, Oregon. Henry Cross, a half-
breed, went back to Kansas and did well as a lawyer.

Yugene abnd Kenneth Xautz, half-breed Indian bmthers.v ‘li’vVed,
where the Fife Flower Shop now is. ‘
Joe‘Craig lived across from the presént site of "The Red Pig".
‘One half-breed owned ; 160~acre berry ranch for a long time.
His.father had homesteaded the land. Henry Sicade owned good
valley land where Mr. Andree now lives near Firwood,

John Guyette, an Tndian, built the house where Miethke's live
néw, just across the road from the Flower Shop. He lived

there for quite some time.

The white settlers all speak well of the Indians of this section
in regard to their dealing with them. They didn't bother the
whites in any way. The only thing for which they were criti-
cized was their inertia and shiftlessness after they bégan to
use aleoholic drink. The Milton Land Co. was organized with the
idea of promoting the sale of land. 1In 1904, Mr. Darling |
platted the Porter section. It was filed at the county of fice
the same year. R.C. Culver Sr. was the salesman in 19065, and

represented e company.  lis son, R.C. Culver Jr. ard danghter,



Mary, who in Mrs, Tom Rlauvelt, livae in Milton now. A frec
car was chartered on the Interurbarn to sl land to prospective
buyers,

The setilemernt was first called Mill town., The first mail came

throurh Pu"nllu., a rura] route fy pcfxtion, Jt was arranael

ALo hlVL 1L come out by way of FQCOld. dhen ahe V'!ton Land Co.

was organizinz, thox 1"uund t%at trhe U.5. g&vernment would not

allow a fourth c)asu pos st offncv to hnve two word in a nnme,

and there was at that tume some placw in Wathngton ca]led Mlll
Town; 50 tbnv "ho"tpned 1t and felt 11 to bo prorpr ovcause of
the name of the rEnow meid ponk. The fxr w;t oifi:e was at

Herman's sture, vstdflnvhpd Ju]y }1 1905« Charlna erman waa
. . _ . 5 SETish 5 Bt Pati il PRI S ,‘!
the ilrsf po tﬂdbt

¢ i et "’ih,,; o JENEA

The first nbﬁuol was bu;lt aftpr th tOWn wa named. The

structure forms the ffémewor for t resert puildlnq.
Thes firct teacher was ﬁd"\ﬂw Du Ir\oxv "duc 1atfr became

Mrs, Joseph i. Martine She is a sister of Mrs. Birtley Ball

ho lives in Milton on Porter Avenue; ?he’Martiné 1ived in the
Rouse on and. Averuc occeupied by Mr. and Mfs. C. B. Johnson,
across From tne Yelsodist Church.  There were 60 ¢hildren in
Ctnal frst school in 1905, The children were nét graded at all,
They were all ares. Miss Du Frasne had to find ogt from what
they knew in readinﬁ‘and numbers Just where thej should be placed.,
There wera 211 prades and children from all cover the United
States, even one from Australia. The County Superinterdent was

My, RerpbaW., o promised her an assisztant at Chr *stmautwme.

Thero wore ~ood seals and desks.  The room was heatled by a weod




heater. - The children brounhf in the wood, but the teacher

had to do her own janitor work. She recieved $50.00 a

'month, wﬁich didn'l seem too meager then, because the cost

of 1i&ing was very low. Sperry Flour Mills were operating

'even?theh; and ai5O pound sack cost only 65¢. Béfore |
iChé;éfﬁégtimé;'Mf, Benbow came to visit. fHé”said this time
‘that the district was too far in debt to hire another teacher;
'?sgkregardless'of the fact that Milton was the 1argest school
k1n the county, she would Jjust have to get along that way.
\There was 1o way Lor “her to tell whether she was giving the

" eighth grade pupils the re‘quired ‘things. She just had to use V;
her ‘own judgement. The questions would be sent from Olympia k

in i'{he’ spring.  Luckily they 'kallypasée‘kd,"fshéf:'s,aid. ‘In the fall

“of 1906 Miss Du Frasne returned and she had a teacher to help

™

her. The school board members were Mr. Derman, Mr. Waters, and

Mr., Schroeder.

Therc were Basket Socials at intervals and’é§program for every
holiday. FEvery summer the teachers were required to attend
Vormal School session in Tacema Tor gix weeks. MWMrs, Martin
said whe still remembers how well Mr. Dewey taught her how to
present Pistory in an interesting way, a method similar to-
diacrams, Thc‘pupjls scemed to like it and remember it well.

The fathers of most of the school children worked in the mill.

They all seemed to be on an equal--no very poor pcople, no very

Tr. 16073, 1904 and 1905, some of the followine families arrived

and stayed to help in this task of buildirg a town; C. E. Boyd,




Dwight Reeves, E. T. Short, Geo. I, Waters, Georpe {Yennon,
Miss Edna:Simmons and mother, and a brother, Arthur $immons.,
In 1907, the town was incorporated. The first town off:cers.
were: Mayor Claude Weeks; Councilmen C. E, Boyd, E. T. Short,
John Williams, W. J, Klépples, Geo. ﬁ. Waters; Clerk Arthur
Simmons; Treasurer I.. Stubbins; Police Judge blmvén Annette;
Narshall Dw1rht Reuves. ‘

The Milton Land Co. allotted land for the first church if
someone would build on it. Sunday School classes were held
in the mill dining hall. This group became the Bépfi;t
organization and had the church built fhore bP]ow 1}e oresent
school site. Rev, Slmeon Annette From Alaska was the mlnlster.

Irs. Klepple had Sunday School. classes in the store. This

organization was a Methodist group. The Baptlst onganlzation

dwindled and the Methodist rrou" was n't Very Tarpp eithcr';oo

they held services in the same bu11d1ﬂv On alternatlnv Sundays,

The church bu11@1ng was later sold to the Iutheran Soc1éty.,

The Milton Land Co. gave to the Fethodists:anothpr pio of;iand
farther up the hill behind the school. In 190?, fho cnurch wau'
built there and many vears afterward a parsonage was built'
alonrside il.  The lLutherans Fave up and their buildirg was sold
and. torn down in the early forties.

Young people in the vicinity beyond and around the St. George
School IouﬁdAamusement in neiphborhooed dances, They took turns

-

meeting at the various homes; the Counters:“the Viebbs, and Gales,

o
ol

especially. Young men and old found a sreat deal of sport in

hunting and fishing in Lhe streams and lakes ag well as the Sourd, R

s
4




Indians always found plenty there, too. W. J. Meers

remembers as a boy, at nirht, hearing the salmon going
upstream in the liylbos Creek to spawn,. The Sweetwater

Creek was a favorite, too,,.for wildlife. Before the

white man came, there were beaver cuttings in all the

streams. ﬂuskrats are found in largc,numbefs yet, in

the Wapato Creek near Firwcod. Deer, wildcats, bears,

and wild birds were Bountirul. Bears came to salmonberries
and elderberries in these dense woods. Hr, Meers said that
with the help of his good degs, he had the houég}well
furnished with bear and wild-cat skins, lle said he killed
f&ur bears in one week in the syamp,behind Simmons' store.

de shot one bear in the road in ffopt qfkth§ present Dayton
garage. !le was never afraid of anything; "iny one bear ever
fought him--a mother bear witﬁ cubs. - His father gave him'a
sﬁbtgur when he was nine years of age. ,He:had been Shooting
an old musket of Civil War vintage previous to that. He tells
an amising story-about a huniing trip which he and brother-
in-law, Charles Blauvelt experienced. Meers had loaded his
gun before starting, and Charlie said he wasn't goine to load
his until he got "on the stand®, That's what he did, while
Meers and the dogs scared up the deer, or so they thought.
Charlie was on the stand with his rur ready. The stand in this
case consisted of twe fallen trees, side by side. A big bear
came running down one of thosellogs, not séeing Charlie. ile
raised his old musket and fired. It made a terrible noise and

smoked. Charlie was sure he'd bagged his bear, but no, the
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Charlie dug

bear rolled off the lor and disappeared.

out the load in ﬁhc other barrel and found to hic amazement

all the gun powder in one barrel, and all

that he had put

:The gunpowdef had merely

the buckshop in the other one.

ad time: to vct away. 'Meers

'frlvhtenod the bear, and he h

always happched tn Charlie. when they

sald that somethinﬁ

went'hunting.,.he'just got too éxcited...éouldn‘t hit a thinge.

ising to sell for profif.» 

Men experlmented 1n planting and ra

In 1906, Geo. Kennon had his first crop of strawberrles for

nnnntte raised vnhetables and berrle"~7¥ 

sale. In 1906, Rev.

for market. He planted app]e treeu; too.

Men were being emp]oyed in :ndustrieb in Tacoma as tlme went

on. In 1906, b0 or 50 men wenit in on. the car each morning to

worke More people, they said, travelled from Milton on the

han from any other station along the'wayJ

Interurban t

~

There was onc Lhing that wasn't so attractive about the

Interurban system..the third rail was extremely dahgérbué.

om around St. George's School

One day, 2 1ittle Indian boy fr

salmon which he had caupht, He had

came down to sell a lavyc

4t on his pole and it dragpged across the rail as he stepped

re wet and the ground was damp; SO he lost

overe. !is fecet we

his life there.

One of the difficulties encountered in this section around

T. Short drilled

1903-05 was to drill a cuccessful well. E.

Reve Annette, who lived

190 feet and never did ret water.

where Wm. Hemper now lives, succeeded 1n gettine water at 77

the only onc this side of Surprise Lake,

.

feet., 'is well was
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Frank Fetterly, who lived on the bank of Sweet Water

Creek, said he simply put down a pos st-hole auyer and got

water. There were snrinvs alonr the bank there. 'Tn1s




